
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
May 6, 2013 

6:30 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Municipal Meeting Room 
Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Executive session – Disposition of real property per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 
 
Roll Call  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
(b) Town Proclamation recognizing Town Commons Day (Action Required) 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
47. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the Code of Ordinance 

Chapter 15 (Traffic and Vehicles) regarding changing the direction of the one-way on 
upper Park Row and to make the end of Park Row a right-hand turn only, with the 
amendments to be enacted on an emergency and regular basis, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
48. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding the proposed 2013-2014 

Municipal Budget and Capital Improvement Plan 2013-2018, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
  



NEW BUSINESS 
 
49. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of April 22, 2013 
(b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka as 

Deputy Wardens for the June 11, 2013 Election 
(c) Approval of Registrar’s extended hours for the June 11, 2013 Election 

 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

May 6, 2013 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive session – Disposition of real property per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss the disposition of real property per M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(C). 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(b) Town Proclamation recognizing Town Commons Day:  Typically on an annual basis, the 

Town Council proclaims Town Commons Day.  This year the May 8th date will 
represent the 294th anniversary of the date the Pejepscot Proprietors granted land to the 
Town of Brunswick.  A copy of the Proclamation is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt the Proclamation for Town Commons Day.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
47. This item is the required public hearing on amendments to the Code of Ordinance 

Chapter 15 (Traffic and Vehicles) regarding changing the direction of the one-way on 
upper Park Row and to make the end of Park Row a right-hand turn only.  Staff is asking 
to have this enacted on both an emergency and regular basis so that it will be in effect 
prior to the Maine State Music Theater’s summer program.  Copies of the draft 
ordinance, a diagram of the proposed project, and a traffic assessment are included in 
your packets. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt ordinance amendments to the Code of Ordinance Chapter 15 (Traffic 
and Vehicles) regarding changing the direction of the one-way on upper Park Row from 
College Street north to Maine Street, and in the same area, to make the end of Park Row a 
right-hand turn only, with the amendments to be enacted on an emergency and regular 
basis.   

 
48. This item is the required public hearing for the proposed 2013-2014 Municipal Budget 

and Capital Improvement Plan 2013-2018.  Adoption of the budget is scheduled for May 
23, 2013.  Councilors should bring their budgets to the meeting. 



 
Suggested motion:  No action is required. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
49. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the report from the Appointments Committee 
and applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of April 22, 2013:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

(b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka as 
Deputy Wardens for the June 11, 2013 Election: This item is to appoint the Warden 
and Deputy Wardens for the School Budget Validation Election. 

(c) Approval of Registrar’s extended hours for the June 11, 2013 Election: This item is to 
consider setting extended registrar hours for this June’s referendum.  A copy of the 
notice for the extended hours is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS,  the Pejepscot Proprietors by their vote of May 8, 1719, granted 

land to “Ly in General and perpetual Comonage” to the Town 
of Brunswick; and  

 
WHEREAS,  May 8, 2013 is the 294rd anniversary of that vote, 
 
THEREFORE,  We the TOWN COUNCIL OF BRUNSWICK, the successors in 

office of the Selectmen, being mindful of the history and heritage 
of our Town, respectful of the inspiring wisdom of the first 
Planners of our community, and proud of the part they have 
played in preserving to our use a portion of the lands with which 
they were so richly endowed, knowing full well our later needs 
in that respect,  

 
DO HEREBY PROCLAIM May, 8, 2013, as TOWN COMMONS DAY 
 

Signed this 6th day of May, 2013 
 
 

___________________________________ 
  

Suzan Wilson 
Brunswick Town Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 47  
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



O:\Word\Ordinances\Code Supplement 26 starting Sept 2012\Chapter 15 Park Row change one way April 2013.docx 

 

Proposed Ordinance Amendments 
Changing Direction of One-Way on Upper Park Row 

Drafted – 04/10/2013 
Public Hearing –  

Adopted – 
Effective – 

 
 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, that Chapter 15, 
Articles III, the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Town of Brunswick, Maine, is amended by 
removing the struck-out language and adding the underlined language as follows: 

 
Chapter 15 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 
ARTICLE III. 

SPECIFIC STREET REGULATIONS 
 
Sec. 15-46. One-way streets.  
 

The following public ways are one-way streets, and vehicles may move only in the 
indicated directions:  

 
Park Row, southerly from Bath Road northerly from College Street to Maine Street to 

College Street.  
 

Sec. 15-50. Right turn only.  
 

A right turn only movement is required at the following locations and intersections: 
……… 

 (7) At the northern end of the section of Park Row which is between College Street 
and the Joshua Chamberlain statue plaza, at its intersection with Maine Street. 

 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town Council at their Regular Meeting held on ________.   
It will become effective thirty days after adoption.  
 
Attest: ________________________  
  Town Clerk 
 



PARK     ROW

C
O

LLE
G

E
    

MAINE STREET

C
O

LL
E

G
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

PARK ROW

PROJECT AREA

SHEET NO.

DATE

27

PROJECT NO.

DESIGNED

---

SCALE

DRAWN

DMR
CHECKED

DMR

APRIL 12, 2013

3516-03

AS NOTED

PA
R

K
 R

O
W

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 P

LA
N

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
, M

A
IN

E

C
O

LL
EG

E 
ST

R
EE

T 
R

EC
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

TO
W

N
 O

F 
B

R
U

N
SW

IC
K

C
O

LL
EG

E 
ST

R
EE

T

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

B
Y

D
A

TE



0' 25' 50'

0 1/2" 1"

1
0

0
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 S
tr

ee
t

S
u

it
e 

4
1
7

P
o

rt
la

n
d
, 
M

ai
n

e 
0

4
1

0
1

(2
0

7
) 

5
4

1
-9

5
4

4
  
F

ax
 (

2
0
7

) 
5
4

1
-9

5
4

8

w
w

w
.m

il
o
n

ea
n

d
m

ac
b
ro

o
m

.c
o

m

Copyright Milone & MacBroom, Inc - 2012

OVERALL PLAN
SCALE 1"=50'

INTERSECTION CONSTRUCTION PLAN
SCALE 1"=10'

DWG NO.
LO-PR

90
%

 P
LA

N
S

 IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W
D

M
R

4-
12

-1
3

NOTES:

1.  PAVEMENT MARKING SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY, AND ARE
NOT THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.  THE TOWN WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL
EXISTING PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND INSTALLING NEW PAVEMENT MARKINGS ASSOCIATED WITH
SWITCHING THE DIRECTION OF PARK ROW VEHICLE TRAFFIC.

2.  THE TOWN WILL REMOVE EXISTING SIGNS AND INSTALL ALL NECESSARY SIGNS.

3.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL WORK WITH BOWDOIN COLLEGE TO ACCOMODATE
ONGOING CAMPUS OPERATIONS AND PARKING NEEDS ALONG PARK ROW.

4.  THE WORK SHOWN ON THE "INTERSECTION CONSTRUCTION PLAN" PORTION OF THIS DRAWING IS
INTENDED TO DEPICT ALL WORK INCLUDED AS BID ALTERNATE 1 IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.























 
 

 
ITEM 48  
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 49  
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



To:  Brunswick Town Council 

From: Councilor Watson, Chair Appointments Committee 

Date:  04/30/2013 

On the evenings of 04/16/2013  the Appointments’ Committee met to interview applicants for eight (8) committees 

(Boards/Commissions).    

For this interview process, the Committee is brings forward two persons for appointment. 

 

Both persons are being recommended for appointment to the Assessment Review Board for which there are two seat 

for appointment. 

Stephen Holt a new appointment and  

Charles  Washington a reappointment 

The Committee did interview three other persons for the Conservation Commission. Where there is another candidate 

who was not able to attend and will be rescheduled. We will not be bringing those recommendations at this time, as 

there are five candidates for four seats.  

 

Ervin Synder was also interviewed at an earlier time and we recommend him for the ZBA 

 

There were to other person not able to attend and they will be rescheduled as well.  



 
 
O:\Word\Boards-fran\AdvertisementsforBoards\13-April app comm vacancy listB.docx4/17/2013 

BRUNSWICK BOARDS AND COMMITTEE OPENINGS 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews on Wednesday, April 17, 2013, to the following Boards 
and/or Committees vacancies listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available in the 
Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 16, 2013 
 
Assessment Board of Review 

2 members –3 year terms to expire on 01/12/2015 
 
Cable TV 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 09/06/2015 
 
Conservation Commission 
 1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2014 
 
Fair Hearing Authority  
 3 members – 2 year terms to expire on 10/01/2014 
 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 Alternative (Commercial Harvester) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2014 
 1 Alternate (no license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2016 
 1 member (Recreation license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2015 
 1 member (Commercial Harvesters) – 3 year terms to expire on 05/01/2016 
 
Personnel Board 
 1 full member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 
 
Recreation Commission 
 2 members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 01/07/2015 
 
Recycling & Sustainability Committee 

2 members – 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2016 
1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 

 
Sewer District Board of Trustees 
 1 full member – 3 year term to expire on 04/01/2016 
 
Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 05/10/2015 
 
Village Review Board 
 2 full members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 10/20/2015 
 1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2013 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals  
 1 associate member –balance of 3 year term to expire on 12/18/2014 
 1 associate member – 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2015 

2 full members - 3 year terms to expire on 11/20/2015 
 

Additional Upcoming Vacancies 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews on Wednesday, May 15, 2013, to the following Boards 
and/or Committees vacancies listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available in the 
Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Monday, May 13, 2013 
Conservation Commission 
 2 members – 3 year terms to expire on 05/01/2016 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 member (no license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2016 



























 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



-Draft- 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
April 22, 2013 

7:00 P.M.  
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, and 
Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor John Richardson, Jr. 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Tom Farrell, Director of 
Parks and Recreation; Don Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Bryan Cobb, 
Information Technology Specialist; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the 
Town Clerk for roll call. 
 
Public Comment:  
 
Deborah King, BDA, thanked the Town for their support of BDA activities throughout the year 
and spoke about upcoming events. 
 
Leon Thayer, Mere Point Road, spoke about the train. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Knight reminded everyone about a medication collection on Saturday. 
 
Councilor Tucker updated the Council on LD 1179 “An Act to Create the Brunswick Landing 
Job Increment Financing Fund” and said there was no contact with the town by Brunswick’s 
legislative delegation, which sponsored the bill. 
 
Councilor Pols spoke on a similar bill and both Councilor Tucker and Manager Brown 
commented on the difference between them. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update 
 
Manager Brown provided this update. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 22, 2013 
Page 2 
 
(b) Council Committee Updates 
 
Updates were given for the Master Plan Implementation Committee. 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke about the Scoop-A-Thon at Gelato Fiasco on April 24th, a fundraiser 
for the Teen Center. 
 
Susan Weems from the Brunswick Public Art Group spoke about the sculpture that will be 
placed at Brunswick Station, and about the group’s community work.   
 
(c) Permission to accept, and expend a donation from Cal Ripkin Baseball and Softball 

(Action required) 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to accept and expend a donation of 
$978 from Cal Ripken Baseball and Softball to be used for improvements to the concession 
stands at Lishness and Edwards Fields.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(Copies of letters from Tom Farrell and the Cal Ripken organization will be attached to the 
official minutes.)  
 
(d) Permission to apply for, and expend, if received, a MMA Safety Enhancement grant 

for the Fire Department (Action required) 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to accept and expend, if received, a 
MMA Safety Enhancement grant for the Fire Department in the amount of up to $2000 to 
be used toward gear for the firefighters.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(e) Announcement of Brunswick Spring Clean Up 
 
Manager Brown spoke on this item. 
 
(f) Update on Police Station project 
 
Manager Brown provided this update. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
42. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following special amusement 

license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
Clare’s Dolphin Restaurant, Inc. 
D/B/A:  Joshua’s Restaurant & Tavern  T.J. Siatras 
123 Maine Street 



Town Council Minutes 
April 22, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
Chair Wilson opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to approve a special amusement 
license for Joshua’s Restaurant & Tavern located at 123 Maine Street.  The motion carried 
with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Perreault abstained since he does work for the applicant. 
 
43. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following alcohol license, and 

will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Full-Time Spirituous, Vinous & Malt 
Daisy Pepper Inc. 
D/B/A:  Pedro O’Hara’s    Timothy T. Kavanaugh 
1 Center Street 
 

Chair Wilson opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Timothy Kavanaugh, owner, spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve an Alcohol License for 
Pedro O’Hara’s located at 1 Center Street.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  
Councilor Perreault abstained since he does work for the applicant. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
44. The Town Council will hear an overview from the Town Manager of the Municipal 

Budget for 2013-2014 and set a public hearing for May 6, 2013, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Chair Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Tucker, 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Pols, and Councilor Watson. 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to set a public hearing for May 6, 
2013, regarding the proposed 2013-2014 Municipal Budget and Capital Improvement Plan 
2013-2018.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of Manager Brown’s memo will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
45. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for May 6, 2013, on an 

amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 15 (Traffic and Vehicles) 
regarding changing the direction of the one-way on upper Park Row, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 



Town Council Minutes 
April 22, 2013 
Page 4 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Brayman, 
Councilor Pols, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Watson, and Councilor Favreau.  
 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to set a public hearing for May 6, 
2013, regarding amendments to the Code of Ordinance Chapter 15 (Traffic and Vehicles) 
changing the direction of the one-way on upper Park Row and to make the end of Park 
Row a right-hand turn only, with the amendments to be enacted on an emergency and 
regular basis.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
46. The Town Council will consider approving a request from the Brunswick 

Downtown Association to hold their annual Outdoor Arts Festival on August 17, 
2013, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to approve the request from 
Brunswick Downtown Association to hold an Outdoor Arts Festival on August 17, 2013.   
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to waive the $500 fee except the $25 
application fee to hold this event, as allowed under Chapter 10, Section 26(b)(14).  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of BDA’s letter of request will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of April 1, 2013 
(b) Appointment of Jeff Hutchinson as Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector 

with a term to expire on 05/03/2014 
(c) Appointment of Carl Adams as alternate Codes Officer and alternate Local 

Plumbing Inspector with a term to expire on 05/03/2014 
(d) Approval of games of chance for the St. John the Baptist Parish Bazaar on June 14, 

2013, June 15, 2013, and June 16, 2013 
(e) Approval of a utility permit application from Maine Natural Gas for sections of 

Hennessey Avenue 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of materials for CA-D and CA-E will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 22, 2013 
Page 5 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
April 24, 2013 
 

May 6, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Word\Election\Registrars-Voter Reg\Registrar hours for Council approval-June13.doc 

 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
Town Clerk’s Department 

207-725-6658 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
MEMO 

 
DATE: April 29, 2013 
 
 TO: Town Council 
 
FROM: Fran Smith, Registrar 
  
 RE: Voter Registration hours for June 11, 2013 School 

Budget Validation Referendum 
 
Pursuant to M.R.S.A. Title 21-A, Sec. 122, Subsection 6 A. (2), 
the Registrar hereby requests that the extended hours be: 
 
From 8:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Thursday, June 6 
 
This is the amount of time required by M.R.S.A. Title 21-A, Sec. 
122, Subsection 6 and Notice under Sec. 125, which has proven 
to be adequate since voter registrations are accepted all the hours 
the Clerk’s office is open. 
 
 


	Binder1.pdf
	mr a no
	mr b yes
	mr b Proclamation Town Commons Day 2013
	mr c yes
	47 yes
	47 Chapter 15 Park Row change one way April 2013
	47 LO-ParkRow-RENDER-LO-PR
	47 Park Row Traffic Assessment
	48 no
	49 yes
	49 final
	49 4-16-2013 Appointment comm report
	13-April app comm vacancy listB
	2013 holt s assessment review
	2013 Snyder E ZBA
	2013, washington c assessing bd

	ca a yes
	ca a April 22 2013 min
	ca b no
	ca c yes
	ca c Registrar hours for Council approval-June13


